
 

 
 

Agenda 

 

Page 1 

Cabinet Member for Jobs, Regeneration and Climate Change 
 

Time and Date 
2.30 pm on Wednesday, 29 September, 2021 
 
Place 
Committee Room 2, Council House, Earl Street, Coventry 
 
Please note that in line with current COVID regulations, there will be limited 
public access to the meeting to ensure social distancing. If you wish to attend 
in person, please contact the Governance Services Officers indicated at the end 
of the agenda. 
 

 
 
1. Apologies   

 
2. Declarations of Interest   

 
3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 a) To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 July, 2021 
 

b) Any matters arising  
 

4. Surrender and Regrant of a New 250 Year Lease for Butts Park Arena, 
Butts Road, Coventry  (Pages 7 - 16) 

 

 Report of the Director of Property Services and Development 
 

5. Outstanding Issues   
 

 There are no outstanding issues. 
 

6. Any other items of public business which the Cabinet Member decides to 
take as matters of urgency because of the special circumstances 
involved   
 

 

Julie Newman, Director of Law and Governance, Council House Coventry 
 
Tuesday, 21 September 2021 
 
Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Suzanne Bennett, e mail Suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk, Tele: 02476 972299 
 
 
Membership: Councillor J O’Boyle, Cabinet Member 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:Suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk


Page 2 

By invitation Councillor P Male, Shadow Cabinet Member  
 
Public Access 

Please note that in line with current COVID regulations, there will be limited public 

access to the meeting to ensure social distancing. 

Any member of the public who would like to attend the meeting in person is required 
to contact the following officer in advance of the meeting regarding arrangements for 
public attendance. 
 
 

Suzanne Bennett 
E mail Suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk 
Tele 02476972299 
 
 

 
 
 

mailto:Suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk


 
– 1 – 

 

Coventry City Council 
Minutes of the Meeting of Cabinet Member for Jobs, Regeneration and Climate 

Change held at 12.00 pm on Friday, 30 July 2021 
 

Present: Councillor J O’Boyle (Cabinet Member) 

Members:   

  

Other Members: Councillor J Lepoidevin  
 
 

Employees (by Directorate): O Aremu, Law and Governance 
S Bennett, Law and Governance 
V Birchall, Business, Investment and Culture 
P Jones, Business, Investment and Culture 

  

Apologies: Councillor P Male 
 

 
Public Business 
 
7. Declarations of Interest  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

8. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 15 July, 2021 were agreed and signed as a 
true record. 
 
There were no matters arising. 
 

9. New Coventry Destination Management Organisation Collaboration Model  
 
The Cabinet Member for Jobs, Regeneration and Climate Change considered a 
report of the Director of Business, Culture and Inward Investment which indicated 
that the Coventry Destination Management Organisation (DMO) Project seeks to 
initiate a proof-of-concept model (known as Destination Coventry) to test the 
viability of creating a formal public / private DMO entity for Coventry from 2023 
onwards. The project is a collaboration between Coventry City Council and 
Coventry & Warwickshire Chamber of Commerce and will deliver both traditional 
and innovative destination management and marketing activities. The report 
sought the necessary approvals to initiate the model, noting the related 
expenditure in 2021/22 and 2022/23 from existing approved budgets. 
 
Destination Management Organisation (DMO) is the umbrella term for 
arrangements in a place to support co-ordination and collaboration across the 
tourism sector’s many stakeholders. They differ across the country in scale, 
funding models and governance, from wholly local authority operated 
arrangements through membership schemes and private companies.   In 
Coventry, the Council’s Visit Coventry and Conference Coventry & Warwickshire 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 
– 2 – 

 

operations make-up the DMO.  This in-house model is considered appropriate in 
places where the visitor economy is less well-developed and where the sector has 
few, if any, major operators. 
 
Coventry’s Destination Management Partnership (DMP) was convened in 2019 as 
a result of recommendations made in the 2019-2023 Tourism Strategy. It is made 
up of senior public and private sector stakeholders from across the city’s visitor 
economy sectors.  In relation to reporting to the DMP, three working groups 
covering its core remit, were established – Visitor Experience, Product & 
Promotion and Visitor Economy & Skills. The DMP has provided opportunity for a 
regular tourism economy dialogue and created an appetite for exploring ways in 
which the current DMO could be more successful and effective in delivering the 
tourism strategy and growing the city’s visitor economy, especially in the build up 
to UK City of Culture 2021 and the Commonwealth Games in 2022.  The DMP has 
recognised that there is potential for improving impact through a new structural 
model for the DMO, with greater involvement and investment from the private 
sector businesses in the sector.   

  
The DMP convened a DMO Advisory Board to explore an alternative DMO model 
for Coventry. The group’s findings validated that a form of public / private 
partnership model can be successful in destinations where the sector is more 
developed and sector associations and collaboration are well established, as we 
are experiencing in Coventry.  The DMP considered that testing a proof-of-concept 
through the next two years, with the opportunities afforded by UK City of Culture 
and the Commonwealth Games would give the best chance to establish the 
feasibility of a new approach. 
 
The report proposed an initiation of a proof-of-concept model (known as 
Destination Coventry) to test the viability of a more formal public / private DMO 
entity for Coventry from 2023 onwards. The model will take the form of a 
collaboration project with an existing membership organisation, namely Coventry & 
Warwickshire Chamber of Commerce (CWCC). Under a robust governance 
structure as set out in the Business Plan as detailed in the Appendix to the report, 
Destination Coventry will be overseen by an Oversight Board of Council and visitor 
economy stakeholders. Quarterly board meetings will provide financial oversight, 
and monitoring of the business plan, Tourism Strategy delivery, and grant outputs. 
The Board will also set and review KPIs, as well as commission activity. Quarterly 
reports to the Cabinet Member for Jobs, Regeneration and Climate Change and 
CWCC Board will take place. 
 
The model will require an ongoing and enhanced Council financial contribution, 
initially until March 2023, but will also benefit from CWCC contributions, plus the 
introduction of membership income, levering income from other commercial 
activities and the opportunity to access Government and VisitBritain funding, as 
set out in Section 5 of the report. Council contributions to the collaboration project 
with CWCC will support the target levels of  delivery for destination management 
for the period July 2021 to March 2023, in advance of which a decision will be 
required as to the future from April 2023, the implications of which will need to be 
reported to members at the time for approval 

 
The model allows the principles outlined in the report to be met and addresses 
more of the considerations highlighted than any other option. Crucially, it removes 

Page 4



 

 
– 3 – 

 

the risk of introducing an additional competing membership organisation to the 
city. Destination Coventry will deliver both traditional and innovative destination 
management and marketing activities as set out in its Business Plan as detailed in 
the Appendix to the report.  

 
There are no additional funding approvals required as a direct result of the 
recommendations in the report. The proposal, if approved, would be funded from 
existing service budgets of £686k (over 2 years), which already support 
destination management and promotion, together with £200,000 of one-off funds 
previously approved to support readiness for City of Culture. The majority of the 
£686k above relates to existing staff costs which will form part of the DMO. 
£46,000 per annum currently allocated to supporting the visitor information 
function will be applied to the project, together with the staffing budget (and on-
costs) currently used to fund the in-house roles. £10,000 per annum from the 
Corporate Communications budget, which is used to support destination 
promotion through the in-house model.  

 
There is an expectation within the Business Plan that the newly formed DMO will 
be required to generate new income streams to supplement to contributions from 
the City Council and the CWCC in order to finance the planned staffing and 
running costs. Any inability to do that will not be a risk to the City Council, any 
underperformance would need to be managed by the DMO by controlling 
spending. 

 
The draft budget for the delivery was summarised in the report.  
 
RESOLVED that the Cabinet Member for Jobs, Regeneration and Climate 
Change:- 
 

1. Approves the Business Plan for Destination Coventry activities in 
support of the Tourism Strategy, as set out in the Appendix to the 
report, which outlines the intended activities of the DMO and the 
arrangements for monitoring, review and governance described in 
Section 2 of the report.  
 

2. Approves a financial contribution from the City Council to Destination 
Coventry totalling £886k, funded from existing approved resources for 
destination management and tourism towards the planned total 
business plan cost for the newly formed DMO of £1.249m, to support 
the proof of concept collaboration project with Coventry & 
Warwickshire Chamber of Commerce for the delivery of destination 
management and promotion for the period July 2021 to March 2023. 
 

3. Notes that the financial contribution to the collaboration, as outlined 
in Section 6.3 of the report, will pay for Council staff in relevant 
service areas which have been seconded to Coventry & Warwickshire 
Chamber of Commerce until the end of this agreement.  

 
4. Delegates to the Director of Business, Investment & Culture, following 

consultation with the Director of Law & Governance, and the Director 
of Finance to negotiate, complete and seal such legal documents as 

Page 5



 

 
– 4 – 

 

are necessary to give full effect to the recommendations set out in this 
report. 

 
 

10. Outstanding Issues  
 
There were no outstanding issues. 
 

11. Any Other Items of Urgent Public Business  
 
There were no items of urgent public business. 
 
 
 
 

(Meeting closed at 12.25pm)  

  

Page 6




 

Public report 
Cabinet Member  

 

 

 
 

 

 

Cabinet Member for Jobs, Regeneration and Climate Change -    29 September 2021 
 

Name of Cabinet Member 
Cabinet Member for Jobs Regeneration and Climate Change -  Councillor J O’Boyle       
       
Director Approving Submission of the report: 
Director of Property Services and Development 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
Sherbourne 
 
Title: 
Surrender and regrant of a new 250 year Lease for Butts Park Arena, Butts  Road, Coventry CV1 
3GE  
 
Is this  key decision – No 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
Coventry Rugby Football Club has a long affliation with the City having been established in 1874. 
The club moved from its historic Coundon Road ground to the Butts Park Arena in 2004 and 
currently plays in the Championship league of national rugby.  
 
Since 2014 the club has invested circa £2.5M in the current facility including an artificial playing 
surface turning the Butts Park Arena into a multi sports facility. So in addition to Coventry Rugby 
Club its is  also currently the home of Coventry Bears Rugby League Club, Coventry United 
Football Club and Coventry United Ladies Football club. It also hosts  games of American Football, 
Gaelic Football, local schools sports, University and junior rugby clubs as well as community 
outreach programes. 
 
Butts Park Arena Ltd, who lease the site from Coventry City Council, are looking to signifncantly 
improve their facilities by developing two new spectator stands with hospitality facilities along with 
associated food / beverage. In addition a hotel with conferencing rooms and 140 private rented 
residential appartments.  
 
The key objective of the Rugby Club is securing their long term financial stability, achieved by 
maximising the financial income from the site. As a more self sustaining organisation it also 
provides the opportunity for the club to continue its role in the local community and to support the 
promotion of health and wellbeing through sports and activity. 
 
To facilitate the proposed development, the Council is being asked to consider accepting a 
surrender of the current lease and the granting a new 250 year lease with a wider user clause. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

 2 

The Council’s independent external valuation, having assessed the changes to the lease terms 
required, and concluded the value for allowing the changes is £1.8M (“the Premium”).  
 
It is proposed that in lieu of paying the Premium up front on the grant of the new lease that 
alternatively the lessee commits to deliver, by way of a legally binding Community Sports 
Agreement, community activities and use of the sporting facilities to individuals or groups up to a 
minimum value of £180,000 per annum over the next ten years.  
 
Recommendations: 
 
The Cabinet Member for Jobs, Regeneration and Climate Change is recommended to: 
 

1. Agree to accept the surrender of the existing leasehold interest and authorise the 
simultaneous grant of a new 250 year lease to Butts Park Arena Limited of the premisies 
on Butts Road for a premium of £1.8M and peppercorn ground rent. 

 
2. Approve that the premum be payable by way of a ten year Community Sports Agreement 

setting out a minimum provision of community activity which equates to a financial 
contribution of £180,000 per annum. 
 

3. Approve the entry into the Agreement for Lease, Lease and Community Sport Agreement 
with butts Park Arena Limited 
 

4. Delegte authority to the Director of Property Services & Development following consultation 
with the Director of Finance and the Director of Law and Governance to undertake the 
necessary due diligence and complete all necessary legal documentation to facilitate the 
completion of the transaction. 

 
5. Delegate authority to the Director of Property Services & Development following 

consultation with the Cabinet Member for Jobs, Regeneration and Climate Change and the  
Cabinet Member for Strategic Finance and Resources for any subsequent variation in 
terms. 

 
 
List of Appendices included: 
 
Annex 1: Site plan identifying the site 
Annex 2.  Indicative development massing plan 
 
Other useful background papers: 
None 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?  
No 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or other 
body?  
No 
 
Will this report go to Council?  
No

Page 8




 

  

 

Report Title: Surrender and regrant of a new 250 year Lease for Butts Park Arena, Butts  Road, 
Coventry CV1 3GE  
 
1. Context (or background) 

 
1.1 Coventry Rugby Club, a histroic club forming part of the fabric of the City since its inception in 

1874, moved to its new home of the Butts Park Arena in 2004 following the sale of its home 
of 88 years at Coundon Road. Currently the club plays its first team rugby in the Championship 
league of English Rugby. 

1.2 Butts Park Arena is located close to the city centre and sits within an area identified for wider 
regeneration. Over the last 10 years significant development of the adjoing former City College 
site has seen the creation of a new business and leisure area including a hotel, affordable and 
extra care residential homes and Albany Theatre. In addition there has been new student 
housing built in the Butts area as well as current plans being developed to improve the existing 
social housing estate opposite in Spn End. 

1.3 Coventry Rugby Club has recognised that their rugby income alone is insufficant to sustain 
the club.  Therefore in order to ensure that this historic club continues to contribute to the City, 
a greater focus on commercial activity in its current location is essential to make the club 
financially self sustaining in the long term. This financial stability will support the aspiration of 
a sustained top 3 league position as well as providing leadership in the local community  
through the promotion of health and well being through sport. 

1.4 Since 2018 the club has invested circa £2.5m enhancing the site and operations which 
included laying down an artificial playing surface enabling all year playing of multiple sports. 
As a result, the Butts Park Arena is not only the home of Coventry Rugby Club but also 
Coventry Bears Rugby League Club, Coventry United F.C and Coventry United Ladies F.C. 
The Arena has also hosted American Football as well as Gaelic Football and its facilities have 
been made available to local schools, universities and junior rugby clubs. 

1.5 In addition the ‘engineered’ layer below the artificial pitch facilitates the hosting of concerts 
and outdoor events. 

1.6 The lease of the Butts Park Arena is currently held by Butts Park Arena Limited on a 125 years 
long leasehold from the Council dated 21st Jan 2003, with an annual peppercorn ground rent.   

 
1.7 Butts Park Arena Limited is a company which is majority owned and controlled by Coventry 

Rugby Club Ltd. 
 

1.8 The Club now proposes to develop the facilities further but this requires support from the 
Council to extend their lease term and widen their user clause to enable this new development 
to happen.  

 
Proposed Development 

 
1.9 The key components of the development proposal are:- 

 150 bed hotel development  

 New 1200 spectator covered standing terrace including with ground floor club shop, 
food and beverage outlets and fanzone 

 140 appartments of private rented residential accommodation. 

 Drive through café. 

 Hospistality suite and and seating area will be deleoped in the widersite development 
plan 
 

Page 9



 

 4 

 
1.10 Each block of development to both the north and east of the pitch are proposed to be five 

storeys in height. 
 
2. Options and recommended proposal 
 
Option 1 – Proceed with the grant of a new lease  
 
2.1 Butts Park Arena  are seeking a new 250 year lease over the whole property with a wider 

user clause to facilitate the redevelopment. The extension of the term is to assist with the 
development of the residential element of the scheme and long term security. The longer 
term also assists with securing funding from investors. 
 

2.2 A “user clause” in a lease sets out what types of development, activities can take place on a 
property. It is only intended to widen the user clause on the areas of the site where 
development is proposed and not across the whole site. In addition the provison of the multi 
sports playing surface for the primary use as a Rugby Football pitch will be protected for the 
duration of the lease by the user clause. 
 

2.3 The new hotel, conferencing and food and beverage facilities allowed will enable the 
maximisation of income from these parts of the site. It will attract customers to the arena 
throughout the week and not just at weekends. This will support the clubs aspirations both 
on and off the pitch by helping to secure its finacial position. 
 

2.4 In return for the lease extension the club have agreed to continue to make the Butts Park 
Arena facilities available for other sports including Coventry United mens and womens 
football teams, Coventry Bears Rugby League Football Club, Disability sport including 
Wheelchair Rugby, American football, local Gaelic football, Coventry School’s, University 
and junior rugby clubs.  
 

2.5 In addition, Coventry Rugby Club are committing to provide community outreach 
programmes promoting health and wellbeing to young people across the City. The Club will 
provide community services to a value of £180,000 per annum over the next 10 years to 
achieve this.  
 

2.6 This investment will be secured by way of a legally binding Community Sport Agreement 
which obligates the Club to provide the community focused programmes to the reqired value. 
This will be moniotored by officers from the Sports area of the Council to ensure it is being 
delivered. Faliure to deliver would result in the Club paying the Premium in cash. 
 

2.7 The community sports programmes delivered will be used to offset the Premium created in 
the extension and widening of the lease terms, which equates to £1.8m (as assessed by 
external property consultants Lambert Smith Hampton). This  
 

2.8 This proposal will support Coventry Rugby Club to become more financially sustainable but 
also the provision of the community outreach programmes will support the Council’s ambition 
to ensure high quality sporting facilities are available for use by the residents within the city. 

 
Option - 2 Not to proceed with the new long lease  
 
 

2.9 Without the new 250 year lease and widening of the user clause, the long term financial 
stability of the Rugby Club would be at risk, relying on income at weekends only. 
 

Page 10



 

 5 

2.10 In addition the current community outreach projects which the club provides would be at risk. 
These activities include ‘Reading & Rugby’, after school extra curriculum sports club, ‘Rugby 
and Health’ programme and social inclusion projects for children from disadvantaged  
backgrounds (which include  multi sport camps where children share food and friendship as 
well a season ticket for them and a parent or guardian so they can come to the weekend 
games throught out the season).  

 
2.11 Not proceeding with this proposal will also significantly reduce the likelihood of attracting 

external finance to invest in the future development of the site and, therefore, to achieve the 
benefits outlined in this report. 

 
3. Results of consultation undertaken 
 
 No public consultation has been undertaken, however, there will be an opportunity for the 

public to comment on the development proposals when a planning application is submitted. 
 
4. Timetable for implementing this decision 
 
4.1 Subject to the approval of the recommendations contained in this report, it is advised that 

the agreement for lease and lease could be ready for completion within 6 weeks. This would 
then enable Butts Park Arena Ltd to enter into agreement with their development partner 
and funder, triggering the planning application process.  

 
5. Comments from the Director of Finance and the Director of Law and Governance 
 
5.1 Financial implications 

 
5.1.1 The current lease of the Butts Park Arena does not produce any revenue income for the 

Council having been granted on a peppercorn rent. The new proposal maintains this position 
and does not change the financial income of the Council. 
 

5.1.2 Independent valuers, Lambert Smith Hampton, have however considered the capital value 
for the granting of a new 250 year lease under the proposed terms and advise that the 
Council are entitled to receive a premium payment valued at  £1.8m.   
 

5.1.3 The £1.8m value of the lease extension will be paid by Coventry Rugby Club by way of a 
leggily binding Community Sports Agreement, which will obliget the club to invest a minimum 
of £180,000 per annum for a period of 10 years. Any under provison against the obligations 
would result in a requirement for the club to pay that value in cash to the City Council. 

 
5.1.4 Facilitating the development of 140 private residential flats for rent  would generate 

additional Council tax income for the authority.   
 
5.2 Legal Implications 

Property 
 

5.2.1 The Council has the power under section 19 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 to provide and equip recreational facilities for use of clubs having 
athletic, social or education objectives. The proposal within this report around the Premium 
being used towards the provision of Community Sports Activities at the site fall within the 
remits of this powers. 
 

5.2.2 There are no s123 implications as the Council receives the monetary value of the Premium 
to be paid under the lease extension by way of the provision of Community Sports Activities 
under a legal binding Community Sport agreemnent, where the club commits to invest a 

Page 11



 

 6 

minuim value over a 10 year period, failure of which will require some or all of the Premium 
to be repaid to the Council. 
 

5.2.3 The Agreement for Lease will be conditional on the tenant securing planning consent, 
funding and a signed building contract for the delivery of the development prior to granting 
the new lease.  
 

5.2.4 Legal Services will support officers in ensuring that the due diligence undertaken in relation 
to the proposals set out in this report are robust and any risks identified will be adequately 
mitigated. 

   
6. Other implications  
 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council Plan? 
 
 Facilitating the redevelopment of the Butts Park Arena will provide additional and improved 

sporting facilities for the benefit of the club and the wider community. In addition, there will 
be a commitment to provide a minimum annual investment in wider community outreach 
projects across the city which aim to improve health and wellbeing linked to sporting 
activities. 

  
6.2 How is risk being managed? 
 
 The risks around the delivery of the development is mitigated by the positive lease 

obligations relating to the development and the community benefits as well as conditions 
which are required to be met by the tenant before the new lease is granted. These obligations 
provide a level of certainty around delivery of the development and community activities.  

 
6.3 What is the impact on the organisation? 
 

There is no direct impact on the organisation.   
  
6.4 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
6.4.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has not been undertaken as the proposal concerns the 

granting of new long lease and no Council service or group will be impacted.  
 
6.4.2 An equality impact assessment is a process designed to ensure that a policy project or 

service does not discriminate against any disadvantaged or vulnerable people. Section 149 
of the Equality Act 2010 imposes an obligation on Local Authorities to carry out an equality 
impact assessment when the local authority is exercising a public function. 

 
6.5 Implications for (or impact on) climate change and the environment 
 
 The Council’s facilitation of the development of the Arena property will be undertaken under 

current building regulations providing energy efficient buildings and specifically provide 140 
new warm and energy efficient residential flats.  

 
6.6 Implications for partner organisations? 
 
6.6.1 There are no implications to partner organisations.  
  
 

Page 12



 

 7 

Report author(s):  
 
Name and job title: 
Paul Beesley - Manager - Property Development Disposal and Aquistions 
 
Directorate: 
Place Directorate  
 
Tel and email contact: 
02476976746  Paul.Beesley@coventry.gov.uk  
 
Enquiries should be directed to the above person(s). 
 

Contributor/approver 
name 

Title Date doc 
sent out 

Date response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors:    

Usha Patel Governance Services Co-
ordinator 

16/09/21 16/09/21 

Names of approvers for 
submission: (officers and 
members) 

   

Finance: Phil Helm  Finance Manager 14/09/21 16/09/21 

Legal: Oluremi Aremu 
  

Major Projects Lead Lawyer 14/09/21 15/09/21 

Property: Adam Hunt Strategic Lead – Property and 
Development 

16/09/21 16/09/21 

Director: Richard Moon Director of Property Services 
and Development 

16/09/21 16/09/21 

    

Members: Cllr J’O’Boyle Cabinet Member for Jobs, 
Regeneration and Climate 
Change 

17/09/21 17/09/21 

 
 
This report is published on the council's website: 
www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings


 

 8 

Appendix 1 Butts Park Arena, Butts  Road, Coventry CV1 3GE  
Site Plan 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

 9 

 
Appendix 2 Butts Park Arena, Butts  Road, Coventry CV1 3GE  
Indicative Development Massing Plan 
 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Surrender and Regrant of a New 250 Year Lease for Butts Park Arena, Butts Road, Coventry

